RYNNE, Amanda (arznnﬁ)

From: RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6)

Sent: Sunday, 9 May 2021 11:07 PM
To: michael.neaton@ged.qld.gov.au
Subject: EMR for CapSDE

Attachments: EMR.docx

Dear Mick,

Thanks for your time last week. Please find attached EMR for CapSDE.
Please let me know if you require any additional information.

Kind regards,

Amanda Rynne

Principal

Capricornia School of Distance Education

241-259 Farm Street, Kawana QLD 4701
T: (07)4931 4843 @ Rockhampton Campus
T: (07) 4987 9112 @ Emerald Campus

Mohilgs-47(3)(b) - Contrai

Capricornia School of Distance Education

241-259 Farm Street, Kawana QLD 4701 T: (07)4931 4843 | ¥: 37 4931 4899 E: arynn6@eq.edu.au
W: https://capricorniasde.eq.edu.au/

A
CAPRICORNIA

i 4 Llakorn Ldussitinn.

This message (including attachments) is intended for th2 addressee named above. It may also be confidential, privileged and/or subject to copyright. If you wish
to forward this message to others, you must first obtais the permission of the author. If you are not the addressee named above, you must not disseminate,
copy, communicate or otherwise use or take any acticn in reliance on this message. You understand that any privilege or confidentiality attached to this
message is not waived, lost or destroyed because yei have received this message in error. If you have received this message in error please notify the sender
and delete from any computer. Unless explicithy attributed, the opinions expressed in this message do not necessarily represent the official position or opinions
of the State of Queensland or the Department of Education and the Arts. Whilst all care has been taken, the Department of Education and the Arts disclaims all
liability for loss or damage to person or progperty arising from this message being infected by computer virus or other contamination.
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Department of Education and Training

2021 EMERGENT MINIMUM
REQUIREMENT APPLICATION

Principal to complete

Region Central Queensland Region

School Name Capricornia School of Distance Education

Enrolment History and Forecast Data

Please provide enrolment history for 2019, February enrolment for 2020, current etizolments, and February
enrolment forecasts for 2021 and 2022.

‘ I . /
YEAR LEVEL 2019 2020 CURRENT | 2021 Day8 | 2022
il 1
|

Prep

Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4 & e _1 S

Year §

Year 6

Total Primary 675.9 720.8 928.2 928.4 1000

| Year 7

Year 8 ‘

» - I (C DN _— : S | = — = L .
Year 9 | 1

Year 10 - | P & ‘

Year 11

Year 12

Total Secondary | 537.4 768 795 788 810
TOTAL SCHOOL 1213.3 1488.8 1723.2 1716.4 1810

Head Count Forecast ‘ 3267 | 3553 | 4735 1 4717 | 4850

Prep classrooms currently available N/A Non-Prep classrooms currently available N/A

Additional accommodation requested YES

For special education applications, provide a list of enrolled students, including Quartile Data

EMP in place? NO Since?

Out of catchment enrolments (nos. in current year):

Queensland
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1 Date 09/05/2021
@

Principal's Signature:

Infrastructure Advisor (IA) to bém’pletes

Prep Classrooms available (as per MyFacilities) N/A
Non-Prep Classrooms available (as per MyFacilities) N/A

| |
Enrolment Capacity (as per MyFacilities) \ N/A

Shortfall has been identified

7]1frastructure Advisor has visited the site £ N ‘I YES ]
Proposed Solution s
Supply fu[niture kit only (no_n - ?uilﬁdiﬁng solut_i_oﬂ s S~ _t e ‘ = : NO R ‘
-7Fjefu7rbi_sh existing facility ) Eihe I = NO k
7Add_itional ac:czn'lglgiation rﬁuired e i : Y WL ) _; YES e J
Is Fhisra Prep appi_iitio_n (IdeLifygxtehs_ign_to existing Prep if ?,B)I_icableL _ _‘l NO ‘

Provide justification to support application and details of proposed solution (If region can relocate a building, ‘
indicate source location and whether agreed with schowi principal) PRI

Proposal is to site two new modified demountahls buildings (4 spi:es) at Glenmore SHS, this would provide a
temporary solution to the facility shortfall probien. With the continued growth over the last few years has placed‘

the school on the back foot to cater for growing enrolments and staff numbers.

Capricornia School of Distance Educaticn has allocated $2,500,000 towards future capital works in the 2021/2022

budget to assist with the facility shortfails. This will require the installation of additional staff preparation / work‘

spaces, interactive eTeaching spaces for individuals, small groups and clustering for class and year groups are‘
requested. In addition, meeting icom/staff room and administrative facilities will address facility shortages.‘
‘Additional staff toilets are requirer] to meet BCA requirements. A master plan of this facility is requested to assist‘
}with future SDE site planning and building typology. |
‘Current staff numbers at the Rockhampton Campus are as follows: 126 + 10 vacancies (136 total) ‘
‘Current Teacher/TA/Admin prep areas: 115 desks ‘
‘Current Teacher/TA Admin prep shortfall: 21 desks ‘

‘Current Teacher studio spaces: 16 studios (12 studios available to share across all Rockhampton‘

teachers/teacher aides) the remainder of lessons are at teacher desks causing noise issues and disruptions to
‘1earning for students.

!Current studios being used as teacher / admin desks: 4

iStaff vacancies: approximately 10 (7 teachers/1 teacher aide/2 admins).

‘Predicted teacher numbers: to increase by approx. 10 in 2022
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Department of Education and Training

Site Specific Information (Provide detailed information as applicable, including Site Facilities Map)

to accommodate an
additional building

Does the site have space

No (Glenmore SS)

Has a potential location
been identified and

agreed with the principal Buildings is behind the Glenmore High School pool on thz cid basketball courts.

Yes - All three Principals at the Glenmore Precinct have agreed in principle on a
preferred site for Capricornia School of Distance Education to expand. This identified

site will assist to address some of the facility shortfalls. Location of the two new Modular

access issues

Are there any location
specific issues

Are there any known site

The siting proposal for these buildings is in close vicinity to the CSDE existing pit for
internet and telecommunications. It is important that any future builds factor into the
plan evolving pedagogies and future teaching techriologies, data and communication
needs so the School of Distance Educaticit can continue to deliver lessons using the
latest technologies.

Staff car parking, off street car patiing and traffic congestion are site specific issues
that are being discussed with the Dept Transport & Main Roads, QBuild, DOE,

Rockhampton Regional Counci! and local politicians. It is clear that the continuous ‘
growth of the school has put additional pressure on current infrastructure. ‘
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Department of Education and Training

‘ Comments / History -

In 2018 a review by Williams Architects in relation to future school buildings and
teaching spaces for Schools of Distance Education was commissioned by the
Department of Education. This report was provided to assist planning for future SDE
development. Three years on and Schools of Distance Education continue to be
assessed for facility needs on the same design brief being utilised by mainstream day
schools. The functional requirements of a School of Distance Education that services a
range of enrolment categories is very different and despite our enrolment growth SODE
ére still assessed on the same scale as a mainstream school.

The Rockhampton Campus services P-12 students including all of our enrolled
Secondary School based and language students. The relocation of any staff to Emerald

Campus would add another complexity to the supervision by the Administration Team.

Relocation of one sector of the school to another location in Rockhampton has also

been explored. To undertake this task would require a fourth location code adding to‘

the already complex nature of finance, facilities and staff supervision. Additiona1‘
locations explored have included Park Avenue SS, TAFE building Yeppoon, CQU
Canning Street and Main Caimpus, North Street Annexe including the vacant block of
land next to the Annexe and the PCYC Yeppoon Recreational Centre. None of these

facilities were suitable for the delivery of Distance Education.

Currently students attending Mini-school in Years 5 and 6 are schooled offsite at the
Dreamtime Centre due to insufficient classroom space at CSDE. Additionally, students
who attend Mini-school in both Primary and Secondary are spread across Glenmore
Primary and High classrooms which causes disruption for not only for the host schools‘

but alsc many of our students experience anxiety having to walk onto an unknown

schoal site. Many of these students are dealing with phobias and anxiety from a range
‘L:vf issues. This is one of the reasons why many left mainstream schools. Teachers‘
|wc,vrking with students at other temporary locations are disadvantaged as they do not
have access to their resources nor access to the necessary technology required to
interact with students who are not only working with them but some of whom are also‘

still working from the home environment. ‘
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Department of Education and Training

Services Infrastructure (Provide details of known capacity of services to accept additional infrastructure, photo of the
Centre of Network cabinet and switches if an additional building is the proposed solution)

Electrical and Security TBC

Telephone TBC

| Data/Wirelegi TBC

 Fire e 5 FRik
Water TBC

IA’s Signature:

/ 3 Date 10/05/2021
,/% . A n ol e —

IM’s Signature: Date
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2018/19 EMERGENT MINIMUM REQUIREMENT APPLICATION

Principal to complete

Region rCentraI Queensland Region

School Name Capricornia School of Distance Education — Rockhampton Campus

Please provide enrolment history and forecast data on page two of this application

Prep Classrooms available for 2017 N/A

Non Prep Classrooms available for 2018 g DS AS®! (S a5 WOy S T e L
= : Priicinal's Signature

Additional Accommodation Requested Yes

Infrastructure Advisor to complete

Prep Classrooms available (as per CWPS) Additionial teacher spaces required.

Non Prep Classrooms available (as per CWPS)

Enrolment Capacity (as per CWPS)

Shortfall Yes

Additional Accommodation Required Yes

Is this a Prep Application No

Are there any site access a) Space for zdditional buildings is a concern. | believe that the best
issues? solution weuid be to remove the two old demountable building at
(incl. Qualitative information) the Glermore Primary School and replace them with two new

demountable buildings in a configuration that would meet out
immedizie needs.
b) Aliernatively two new replacement demountable buildings could

i2e offered in exchange for Glenmore Primary School's “C” block.
This would be our preferred solution.

Are there any location specific
issues:

(e.g. alc, costing, BPI)

e Administration and Teaching spaces (10) required.
e Need additional toilets and staffroom space.
= We require office space for an additional 20 teaching staff, a

school nurse and Chaplaincy services and other support
services.

The following staff we have not yet appointed due to space :

1 x Youth Support Worker

2 x AD2

2 X TA0O4

11 teachers

3 HoDs

10 additional teachers in 2019 in response to enrolment growth
1 x Chaplain

2 i v |

il i = |
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Are there any other issues;
(e.g. Electricity, security,
telephone)
Recommended solution: ¢) Space for additional buildings is a concern. | believe that the best
(If the region can relocate a solution would be to remove the two old demountable building at
building indicate source the Glenmore Primary School and replzce them with two new
location and whether agreed demountable buildings in a configuration that would meet out
with school principal) immediate needs.
s Alternatively two new replacement demountable buildings could
be offered in exchange for Glenmorz Primary School’s “C” block.
This would be our preferred soiution.
Comments:

Please provide any relevant comments.

Application is for the provision to allow for the additional 23 sisf as part of the staffing model, with further
growth in early 2019.

Application will be required to be supported with furniture allocations for staff and also the provision of
internal partitioning screens, tele[hone and data services as well as specific teaching spaces for teachers
to provide virtual lessons using the most recent teciinologies.

Enrolment History and Forecast Data

Principal to complete
Please provide February enrolment history for 2015 to 2018, current enrolments, and
February enrolment forecasts for 2017 and 2018

2018 -

1
Year Level 2015 2016 2017 (Day 8) (Ci?r:nt) (f c:zrglist)
Total Primary 240 292 363 A 403.6 550
Tora 171 270 363 435.4 488.1 550
Secondary
Total School 411 562 726 811.8 891.7 1100
Head Count 1539.8 1652 2300
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Headcount numbers

Staffing MyHR
FTE/Headcount

Total
teachers (94)
all staff 115

Total
teachers
(114) all
staff 130
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RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6)

—— = e
From: BIELENBERG, lan (ibiel1)
Sent: Wednesday, 6 February 2019 1:44 PM
To: 'MCMILLAN, Bill'
Cc: Craiglea Schoolroom; Dan Coxen (ffncq@qtu.asn.au)
Subject: Application for Site Approval for Fleetwood Demountable Classroon
Attachments: 06022019141242.pdf; Application for Site Approval for Fleetwood Demountable.pdf

Good Afternoon Bill,

| would like to resubmit our application for site approval to place a Fleetwood Demountable Classroom down behind
Glenmore State Schools “S” Block. In addition | would like to include in this application site approval for the
provision of a path connecting the bottom Glenmore Car Park with the stairs at the rear of “K” Block.

These proposals have the support of both the Principals’ of Glenmore High School arid Glenmore Primary School.
We are all working together to solve our campus issues and have agreed on a scope of works.

We believe that we have sufficient funds to complete this scope of works and lnok forward to your positive
response so that we can commence the project as a matter of urgency

As the P&C have had a strong interest in acquiring additional classrooin sgaces for students, and the QTU have a
strong interest in achieving the provision of additional buildings | have included them into the application.

Once again we have continued to grow in enrolments this year. i have attached a copy of our Day 8 enrolments

which indicate that we have grown of around 300FTE. We row have a FTE teacher allocation of 117 with a total staff
of more than 140.

We have plans to develop additional teaching spaces in the mailroom in the next couple of weeks to accommodate
the additional staff.

Kindest Regards
lan

lan Bielenberg

Principal

Capricornia School of Distance Educaticn
Rockhampton Campus

07 4931 4823

Emerald Campus

07 49879112

Mobile

Q

LAPRIGIZNIA

Follow CapricorniaSDE on Twitter

Inspiring minds. Creating opportunities. Shaping Queensland’s future.
Please condiser the environment before printing this email.

This message (including attachments) is intended for the addressee named above. It may also be confidential,
privileged and/or subject to copyright. If you wish to forward this message to others, you must first obtain the
permission of the author. If you are not the addressee named above, you must not disseminate, copy, communicate
or otherwise use or take any action in reliance on this message. You understand that any privilege or confidentiality

1
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attached to this message is not waived, lost or destroyed because you have received this message in error. If you
have received this message in error please notify the sender and delete from any computer. Unless explicitly
attributed, the opinions expressed in this message do not necessarily represent the official position or opinions of the
State of Queensland or the Department of Education and the Arts. Whilst all care has been taken, the Department of
Education and the Arts disclaims all liability for loss or damage to person or property arising from this message being
infected by computer virus or other contamination.

2
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Department of Education

Staffing Enrolment Collection

Schools of Distance Education

COLLECTION CLOSES 12 NOON ON COLLECTION DAY

Day 8 OnePortal provides infformation outlining the collection requirements. Principals need to be familar with the Day 8 Guidelines for Counting Students
School Name Centre Code 3612

Staffing Enrolment Collecti

Capricornia School of Distance Education

@ Day 8 Staffing Enrolment Collection
Interim collection for predicted Day 20 enrolments

Day 20 Staffing Enro'ment Collection
Final collection for Dey 20 verified enrolments

Student Enroiment Counts

Please provide the school's primary student enrolment numbers as full-time equivalent counts (FTE) by year level groups in eaci «

atergory A, B{Please provide subject count for
and €. Use "0" to indicate no enrolments or where the school is not approved to offer a year level or service

compulsory LOTE program

alent Count FTET 3

Category [ ) __ Fulltime Equ

i SUblectiCalint SRR
LS HIES A W i Ny ¢ | Compulsory Primary LOTE
| Years | Years ' Years | Years [ Years | TOTAL
PREP | | | Year 05 Year 06
Vo 01-03 = 04-06 01-03 | 0406 04-06 | LOTE
5240 199.90 358.60 0.00 0.00 \ 0.00 2.00 0.00 | 47.00 54.00 101.00

Please provide the school's seco

ndary student enrolment numbers as student counts (SC

Brouns v
[FTE) and subyject count per student

) by year le hin each category A, B and C, indicating the full-time

uivalent counts
Include the total number of subject enrolments for Year 5 compulsory LOTE in year level group 07-10 by category

The totals for subject count,
student count (SC) and full-time equipment count (FTE) will be automtically calculated by year level groups and total catergory. Use “0” to indicate no enraiments or where the school is
not appraved to offer a year level or service

A Student Count (5C)
Category = . e e e e e e
z | A | B |
e S S e < Co L 15, ey
FTECount | Subject Count Years Years TOTAL Years Years TOTAL Years Years | TOTAL
(FTE) Per Student 07-10 11-12 CatA 07-10 11-12 Cat8 07-10 11-12 catC
0.2 1 296.00 | 85.00 | - ART(OANS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,00
0.4 2 8.00 2.00 0.00 0.00 00_0 0.00 0.00 Zu _0__00_ -
0.6 3 0.00 5.00 0.00 0.00 S 0.00 0.00 |8 0.00
0.8 4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Dﬂ 0.00 000 | ~0.00
1.0 5 288.00 180 00 0.00 0.00 990 ¥ 0.00 0.00 s 70_02
1.0 6 1.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0_.0_0 0.00 000 0.00
1.0 7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 - 0.0 0.00 000 | 0.00
1.0 8 0.00 006 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 | 0.00
1.0 | 9 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 | 000
1.0 | 10 0.00 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL - SUBJECT COUNT 1752.00 | £0G4.00 | 2756.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL- STUDENTCOUNT (SC) 59700 | 272,00 | 86400 000 | 000 0.00 000 | 000 0.00
TOTAL - FTE COUNT (FTE) 35040 | 200.80 551.20 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00

~"

TAFE Enrolment Counts (2 @-

Please provide the school's TAFE enrolment numbers as full-time equivalent counts (FTE) as known at the time of the Day 20 Staffing Enrolment Collection

1 1s important to note that
these TAFE enrolment numbers are not used for the purpose of the Department's school resource allocations

They are collected for a separate purpose onbehalf of State Schools
Operations inconsultation with Performance Monitoring and Reporting Branch After the collection, any adjustments 1o these enrolment counts need to be discussed directly with State
School Operations

Year Level 11 12 TOTAL TAFE

0.00 0.00

FTE Count (FTE) 0.00

PRINCIPAL’S CERTIFICATION .

I confirm that the information supplied on this form s complete and accurate The school's student enrclment coumts have been verified and reconciled with enrolments and
attendance records, and supporting documentation has been maintained

Principal's Name 1an Bielenberg Date 7th of February 2019
Day & Help Desk {Workforce Resourcing HR

1e (07) 3513 5800 susmIT
EHelpDesk@aed.qld gov au

Tele

7} Queensland
Government

Email D
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( [F7E = 76

Capricornia (Emerald Campus) School of Distance Education Z@O * J “(’/ g 2 é’sa&
Enrolment Summary Report P \&/, i f;{./ W
Wi 537

(A signed copy of this report is to be kept on file at the school to meet Audit requirements) V

Low Year Level: PY High Year Level: 12 /4 g v
L OTE 27
All Students
Pre  Prep Pri Sec Spe Total| Year1 Year2 Year3 Year4 Year5 /Yeag6 Year7 Year8 Year9 Yea:r iC Year1i Year12 P PU Su CcJ Ccs
Full Time 0 20 207 468 0 695 23 22 29 32 54 50 76 68 94 118 52/ 0 0 0 0 0

Part Time 0 162 1747 396 0 2305 161 122 340 307 396 421 140 91 K

3 20 88
Persons 0 182 1954 8B4 0 3000 184 144 369 339 443 475 190 1®7 .\_,_,_)_L--llg m

4 0
0
FTE 0.0 524 5585 5512 00 1162.1 !55.2 47.0 97 ?{ w 780 EJ;)? }B’G 98 6 137.2 63.6 0.0 00 00 0.0 0.0
199 9 3586 L NPT
Y

Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 PS PU Su cJ cs

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Students

Pre Prep Pri Sec Spe Total| Year1 Year2 Year3 Yeard4d Year5 Year6 Year7
Full Time 0 1 10 74 0 85 1 1 1 3 3 1 3 10 10 13 20 18 0 0] 0 0 0
Part Time 0 29 228 38 0 295 30 13 57 39 50 39 11 B 7 4 10 0 0 0 0 0 0
Persons 0 30 238 112 0 380 31 14 58 42 53 40 14 16 17 17 30 18 0 0 0 0 0
FTE 0.0 6.8 55.6 826 0.0 1450 7.0 20 124 10.8 13.0 88 52 1186 114 138 226 18.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

190 N,gl?fam
] 67

| certify that the information above is an accurate account of enrolments at the school.

Dillawme in F7E

1 3/ " zgz
¥ i7"
—i?ﬁ"’ng 10 &

Wednesday, February 06, 2019 7:12:39 AM — % / Pa# of 1
ﬁlL e é 4 Osef ibiel

OneSchDDl Ref - EnroimentSummary 1 1-3612 6
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BIELENBERG, lan (ibiel1)

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Ye's

Matt Newell
Principal

Glenmore State High School

Department of Education

P: 07 49 230333

£: mnewelS@eq.edu.au

CNR Bruce Hwy and Farm St | Rockhampton North QLD 4701
PO Box 5822 | Redhill, Norman Gardens QLD 4701

Please nsider the environment before printing this emai

NEWELL, Matthew (mnewe15) <mnewel15@eq.edu.au>
Tuesday, 5 February 2019 2:05 PM

BIELENBERG, lan (ibiel1)

RE: Additional Building behind S Block

From: BIELENBERG, lan (ibiell) <ibiell@eq.edu.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 5 February 2019 1:07 PM

To: NEWELL, Matthew (mnewel15) <mnewel5@eq.edu au>
Subject: RE: Additional Building behind S Block

Hi Matt

Are you ok about endorsing the scope of works?

Kindest Regards

lan

From: NEWELL, Matthew (mnewel15) <innewelS@eq.edu.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 5 February 2019 12:45 PM

To: BIELENBERG, lan (ibiell) <iticii@eq.edu.au>

Subject: RE: Additional Building hehind S Block

Thanks lan

Thanks for including us in the consultation

Cheers
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Matt Newell
Principal

Glenmore State High Schoaol
Department of Education

P: 07 49 230 333
£: mnewelS@eq.edu.au

CNR Bruce Hwy and Farm St | Rockhampton North QLD 4701
PO Box 5822 | Redhill, Norman Gardens QLD 4701

Please consider the environment before printing this email

From: BIELENBERG, lan (ibiell) <ibiell@eqg.edu.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 5 February 2019 12:33 PM

To: NEWELL, Matthew (mnewel5) <mnewel5@eq.edu.au>
Subject: FW: Additional Building behind S Block

Hi Matt,

Thanks for dropping in today for a chat, Please find attached an outline ¢f ous proposed scope of works to provide
additional teaching spaces and additional car park spaces for all staff to access.

If you are able to endorse this proposal that would be great as | believe that there are benefits for all three schools.

Kindest Regards
lan

From: DUNLOP, Mark (mdunl5) <mduni5@eq.edu.au:
Sent: Tuesday, 5 February 2019 10:54 AM

To: BIELENBERG, lan (ibiell) <ibiell@eq.edu.au>
Subject: RE: Additional Building behind S Block

Thanks lai

| had intentions of catching up yesterday bam supportive of the proposal. Also, just noting that the building will be
in the vicinity of our play areas, so theie will be the noise of kids playing at break times

Regards

Mark Dunlop | PRINCIPAI

Glenmore SS| "Quality LEarming in a Caring Environment
241-259 Farm St Rocknampton North 4701

- 49230666 | 1:492 30600

Visit our website at: https://glenmoress.eq.edu.au

Quality Learning
Outsianding Fulures
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This message (including attachments) is intended for the addressee named above. It may aiso be confidential,
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

From: BIELENBERG, lan (ibiell) <ibiell @eqg.edu.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 5 February 2019 9:21 AM

To: DUNLOP, Mark (mdunl5) <mdunl5@eq.edu.au>
Subject: Additional Building behind S Block

Good Morning Mark,

As discussed last week | would just like to outline our plans, for your endorsement, 10 place a Fleetwood
Demountable building down behind your “S” Block.

Over the past few years we have experienced significant enrolment growth with our numbers currently
sitting in excess of 1150 FTE and 3050 Head Count. We have grown by more than 300FTE since our last
allocation of physical building and resources which came from Glenmore Primary School.

This solution provides us with additional resources withoui :mpacting on Glenmore Primary School facilities.

As part of this additional development we plan to consiruct a covered walk way connecting the Oval Carpark
with the stairs next to K Block.

This will be completed in two stages with the conciete path being constructed first and the overhead shelter
heing added as soon as funds become availaidie.

Quotes will be obtained for the whale project up front and if affordable we will complete the project in one
action.

In addition to the covered walk way, we will provide road base to the carpark to allow for all weather access.
The surface will be a product siinilar to crusher dust.

The development of this car park will significantly reduce the pressure on the Mike Mahar car park and
reduce the traffic on Farrn Street at critical times.

e  We will also provide Izndscaping in the area between buildings 51,41 and 44.
In addition to this nroject we will ask our consultants to draw up plans for the redevelopment of the toilet
block, building 20, in a fashion similar to what has heen done at Berserker Street State School.

It is our intention to apply for funding under the “SSS” program to complete this project.

I sincerely hope that this project meets with your endorsement as it will improve the services to all three
school sites and significantly improve our facilities.

Should you be supportive of our development application could you please respond with your
endorsement?

Kindest Regards
lan
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lan Bielenberg

Principal

Capricornia School of Distance Education
Rockhampton Campus

07 4931 4823

Emerald Campus

07 49879112

Mobile
s.47(3)(b) - Co

e

GAPRICORNI

Follow CapricorniaSDE on Twitter

Inspiring minds. Creating opportunities. Shaping Queensland’s future.
Please condiser the environment before printing this email

This message (including attachments) is intended for the addressee named above it may also be confidential
privilieged and/or subject to copyright. If you wish to forward this message to others, you must first obtain the
permission of the author. If you are not the addressee named above, you must not disseminate. copy, communicate
or otherwise use or take any action in reliance on this message. You understand that any privilege or confidentiality
attached to this message is not waived lost or destroyed because you hiave received this message in error. If you
have received this message in error please notify the sender and delete from any computer. Unless explicitly
attributed, the opinions expressed in this message do not necessearily represent the official position or opinions of the

Slate of Queensland or the Department of Education and the Arts niist all care has been taken the Department of

Education and the Arts disclaims all liability for loss or damage o person ar property ansing from this message being

infected by computer virus or other contamination
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EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Infrastructure Services

Siting Approval Application — Minor Building Works

(submil to your Regional Infrastructure Advisor)

School Name: Capricornia School of Distance Education

Project description: Y
Fleetwood Modular Classroom as per SOA

1. Estimate of cost of project $ 500,000 1 S i Quutation attached (please )

) s
y : : SO A
Documentation as listed below is enclosed ’

Reguesi from school, signed by the principal
This form - Siting Approval Application
School Site Plan (A4 size) showing School Namz and Street Fron

tages
An enlarged Site Plan (A4 size) with measu

re ‘{"';T“'TI(HH‘r"r*-l(‘u"“\"w‘HwIt'H\li"-'w"n e iding:e
A '-"-"'Illi;%!}/(;:\fiff{;!l‘.t' of ¢ [»mmtlaluz éh neigh %mlnw wn, erlies pplicable
cﬂ/yaﬂfmi . M @/275/‘5{

Certification bOM /?ﬂf’( 72 CM‘;??{"/ZO

S———

| certify that the information given in this appdcation 1s correcl and all congiions vill be complied wil

| certify that the school have

undertaken a consullation process with neighbouring properties in rela
this project (if applicable)

/ |
4 T f
: AN s ) L lfmAOOY ) LAN JB/€lénber (2[4 ¥
Nam€ ! ianature Dat
e e o R T S g T e i U e e

Approval — to be corapiaeted by the Infrastructure Advisor

The above application has been assessed In accordance with departmental requirements
O Siting appro

rovaiis given. Proceed with your project
[0 Siting approvatis given. Please
certifier or builging surve

prepare Building Act Compliance Application fe

it lodagement with private

Minimum Documentation required:

O IDAS Form 1 &2, Form 15

O As-to-be-consiructed Drawings

O Structural Design Certificate - original
[0 This Siting approval &

{0 Furiher assessmeni required Please provide the following documeniation

Assessment Officer Date

Regwonal Intrastructure Advisor
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RYNNE, Amanda (agnnG)

From: DREDGE, Graham <Graham.DREDGE@qed.qld.gov.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 17 August 2021 9:05 AM

To: RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6); BELL, Greg

Subject: RE: Capricornia School of Distance Education - Rockhampton EMR
Hi Amanda

| will follow up as the application was discussed last week.
Will let yourself and Bill know.

Regards

Graham

Graham Dredge

Executive Director, Infrastructure Operations
Infrastructure Services

Department of Education

P: 07 303 44871 |M: EaZE=ym—dl | E: graham.dredge@ged.aid.gov.au |
Level 17| 42 Albert Street | Brishane QLD 4000
PO Box 15033 | City East QLD 4002

Queensland
Government

Inspiring minds. Creating opportunities. Shaping Queensland’s future,
Please consider the environment before printing this email.

From: RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6) <arynn6@eq.edu.au>
Sent: Tuesday, 17 August 2021 8:34 AM

To: DREDGE, Graham <Graham.DREDGE@aed.qld.gov.au>; BELL, Greg <Greg.BELL@qed.qgld.gov.au>
Subject: Capricornia School of Distance Zducation - Rockhampton EMR

Dear Graham and Greg,

| am contacting you in relation tc the EMR for Capricornia School of Distance Education- Rockhampton Campus. |
am acutely aware that the crid of Term 3 is fast approaching. The EMR was submitted in May 2021 and it has now
been over 3 months sirce the initial submission.

Bill McMillan advised that the response to this EMR is still being considered and that he will let me know when there
is a definitive answer.

Would you be able to provide any further information as to the progress of this request as the staff and school
community are starting to reapply pressure despite being repeatedly asked for patience in this matter.

Kind regards,

Amanda Rynne

Principal

Capricornia School of Distance Education

P.S. “l am not always at my desk and only check my email 3-4 times per day. If urgent please contact our main office numbers listed below.”

1
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241-259 Farm Street, Kawana QLD 4701

T: (07) 4931 4800 @ Rockhampton Campus
T: (07) 4987 9100 @ Emerald Campus
Capricornia School of Distance Education
241-259 Farm Street, Kawana QLD 4701

E: arynnb@eq.edu.au

W: https://capricorniasde.eq.edu.au/

Q
CAPRICORNIA

Cheed of Tiatmran 2 R

This message (including attachments) is intended for the addressee named above. It may also be confidential, privileged 2nd/or subject to copyright. If you wish
to forward this message to others, you must first obtain the permission of the author. If you are not the addressee n2med ¢bove, you must not disseminate,
copy, communicate or otherwise use or take any action in reliance on this message. You understand that any privilege or confidentiality attached to this
message is not waived, lost or destroyed because you have received this message in error. If you have received iniz message in error please notify the sender
and delete from any computer. Unless explicitly attributed, the opinions expressed in this message do not necessarily represent the official position or opinions
of the State of Queensland or the Department of Education and the Arts. Whilst all care has been taken, the Department of Education and the Arts disclaims all
liahility for loss or damage to person or property arising from this message being infected by computer virus or other contamination.

From: RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6)
Sent: Friday, 18 June 2021 8:09 AM

To: 'Graham.DREDGE@qed.qld.gov.au' <Graham.DREDGE@ged.ald.gov.au>; 'Greg.BELL@qed.qgld.gov.au'
<Greg.BELL@ged.gld.gov.au>

Subject: Capricornia School of Distance Education - Rockkampton EMR

Dear Graham and Greg,

Many thanks for taking time out of your busy schezuies to visit CSDE Rockhampton Campus on the 3™ of June 2021.

Post visit | was wondering if there was any further discussions or decisions on the EMR for the Campus that you are
in a position to share?

Kind regards,

Amanda Rynne

Principal

Capricornia School of Distance Eclucation

P.S. “l am not always at my desk and only check my email 3-4 times per day. If your matter requires my urgent

attention, please contact me cirectly on|S-47(3)(b) - Conty ~

241-259 Farm Street, Kawana QLD 4701
T: (07)4931 4843 @ Rockhampton Campus
T:(07) 4987 9112 @ Emerald Campus

Mobilels.47(3)(b) - Cont

Capricornia School of Distance Education

241-259 Farm Street, Kawana QLD 4701 T: (07)4931 4843 | F: 07 4931 4899 E: arynn6@eq.edu.au
W: https://capricorniasde.eq.edu.au/

2
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Q
CAPRICORNIA

ﬁbulfnuanﬁﬁuuﬂ

This message (including attachments) is intended for the addressee named above. It may also be confidential, privileged and/or subject to copyright. If you wish
to forward this message to others, you must first obtain the permission of the author. If you are not the addressee named above, you must not disseminate,
copy, communicate or otherwise use or take any action in reliance on this message. You understand that any privilege or confidentiality attached to this
message is not waived, lost or destroyed because you have received this message in error. If you have received this message in error please notify the sender
and delete from any computer. Unless explicitly attributed, the opinions expressed in this message do not necessarily represent the official position or opinions
of the State of Queensland or the Department of Education and the Arts. Whilst all care has been taken, the Department of Education and the Arts disclaims all
liahility for loss or damage to person or property arising from this message being infected by computer virus or other contamination.
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IMPORTANT: This email and any attachments may contain legally privileger, confidential or private information, and
may be protected by copyright. You may only use or disclose this informaticr if you are the intended recipient(s)
and if you use it in an authorised way. No other person is allowed to uss, review, alter, transmit, disclose, distribute,
print or copy this email and any attachments without appropriate authorisation.

If you are not the intended recipient(s) and the email was sent to you by mistake, please notify the sender
immediately by return email or phone, destroy any hardcopies of this email and any attachments and delete it from

your system. Any legal privilege and confidentiality attach=d to this email is not waived or destroyed by that
mistake.

The Department of Education carries out monitoring, scanning and blocking of emails and attachments sent from or
to addresses within the Department of Education for the purposes of operating, protecting, maintaining and
ensuring appropriate use of its computer network. It is your responsibility to ensure that this email does not contain
and is not affected by computer viruses, defects or interference by third parties or replication problems (including
incompatibility with your computer system).

The Department of Education does not accefst any responsibility for any loss or damage that may result from
reliance on, or the use of, any information contained in the email and any attachments.
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RYNNE, Amanda (agnnﬁ)

From: MCMILLAN, Bill <BilLMCMILLAN@ged.gld.gov.au>

Sent: Monday, 9 August 2021 3:33 PM

To: RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6)

Subject: RE: EMR - Rockhampton Campus information for P&C Meeting 10 August 2021
G'day Amanda,

The response to this EMR is still being considered. | will let you know when there is a definitive answer.
Kind Regards

Bill McMillan BGovtPubMgmt
Infrastructure Manager

Infrastructure Services / Central Queensland Region
Department of Education

P: 07 4932 4032

M [S473)m) -1

E: bil.mcmillan@ged.qld.gov.au

Level 4 | 209 Bolsover Street | Rockhampton QLD 4700
PO Box 138 | Rockhampton QLD 4700

Working together to lift learning and skilling outcomes for Queensland. Queensland
Please consider the environment before printing this email. Government

InCQ, we're going to
Stay Connected: Visit the new CO Hub

From: RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6) <arynn6@eq.edu.au>

Sent: Monday, 9 August 2021 9:01 AM

To: MCMILLAN, Bill <Bil.LMCMILLAN@qed.qald.gov.au>

Subject: EMR - Rockhampton Campus infarmiation for P&C Meeting 10 August 2021

Dear Bill,

I'm hoping | can please have seri« information to provide to the P&C for the upcoming meeting on Tuesday 10"
August in relation to the EMR subrnitted for Rockhampton Campus.
Look forward to hearing from you.

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
T:(07) 4931 4800 @ Rockhampton Campus
T: (07) 4987 9100 @ Emerald Campus
Capricornia School of Distance Education
241-259 Farm Street, Kawana QLD 4701

E: arynnb6@eq.edu.au

1
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W: https://capricorniasde.eq.edu.au/

2\
CAPRICORNIA

& A of Lhatorcs Ldemsodsion

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
liability for loss or damage to person or property arising from this message being infected by computer virus or other contamination.
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IMPORTANT: This email and any attachments may contain legally privileged, confidential or private information, and
may be protected by copyright. You may only use or disclose this information if you are the intended recipient(s)
and if you use it in an authorised way. No other person is allowed to use, revizw, alter, transmit, disclose, distribute,
print or copy this email and any attachments without appropriate authorisztion.

If you are not the intended recipient(s) and the email was sent to you by mistake, please notify the sender
immediately by return email or phone, destroy any hardcopies of this email and any attachments and delete it from

your system. Any legal privilege and confidentiality attached to this email is not waived or destroyed by that
mistake.

The Department of Education carries out monitoring, scanning and blocking of emails and attachments sent from or
to addresses within the Department of Education for the purposes of operating, protecting, maintaining and
ensuring appropriate use of its computer network. it is your responsibility to ensure that this email does not contain
and is not affected by computer viruses, defects or interference by third parties or replication problems (including
incompatibility with your computer system).

The Department of Education does not aceept any responsibility for any loss or damage that may result from
reliance on, or the use of, any informatios contained in the email and any attachments.
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RYNNE, Amandi(_arynnG)

—
From: MCMILLAN, Bill <BillMCMILLAN@ged.qgld.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, 11 February 2019 2:27 PM
To: RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6)
Cc: FREDERICKS, Kim; ibeil1@eq.edu.au; NEATON, Michael
Subject: Capricornia School of Distance Education - Additional Teacher Accommodation
Attachments: 18 402740 Capricornia School of Distance Education - 2019 Emergent Minimum

Requirement.DOC

Good Afternoon Amanda,
As discussed at this morning’s meeting the attached 2019 Emergent Minimum Requireient for the Capricornia
School of Distance Education requesting additional teaching space at the Rockhamptori Carapus has been declined.

If you anticipate that this requirement will still exist following the realignment of teaciiing resources with an
emphasis on providing services mainly from the main campus at Emerald please rest:bmit an updated application
requesting additional teaching spaces at Emerald.

Kind Regards

Bill McMillan
Infrastructure Manager

Rockhampton Office/Infrastructure Services
Department of Education

P: 07 4932 4032

: [5473)(b) - 4

E: bil.mcmillan@ged.qgld.gov.au

Level 4 | 209 Bolsover Street | Rockhampton QLD 4700
PO Box 138 | Rockhampton QLD 4700

Working together to lift learning and skilling outcomes for Queensland.
Please consider the environment before printing this email.

Queensland
Government
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IMPORTANT: This emaii an any attachments may contain legally privileged, confidential or private information, and
may be protected by copyright. You may only use or disclose this information if you are the intended recipient(s)
and if you use it in an authorised way. No other person is allowed to use, review, alter, transmit, disclose, distribute,
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

The Department of Education does not accept any responsibility for any loss or damage that may result from
reliance on, or the use of, any information contained in the email and any attachments.
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1 Introduction

QBuild has been appointed to undertake preliminary investigations, on behalf of the Department of
Education (DoE) into planned works at the Capricornia Schoal of Distance Education (SODE). Based
on the briefing information as provided by DoE, the purpose of this report is to investigate the
proposal for a new student accommodation centre and other associated works.

The Capricornia SODE Emerald Campus is located on the corner of Gray and Gladstone Streets,
Emerald which is formally known as Lot 1 on CP902896.

The intention of this reportis to assist in identifying whether the Project involves development,
whether the Project constitutes a Material Change of Use (MCU), and what oktigations arise under
the Planning Act 2016 in relation to development.

This report will detail risks and constraints relating to development and namiriate additional studies or
reports required for the proposal, either to inform design, prior to the comrmiciicement of works, or
following as a consequence of development.

This report includes the following components:

o Anoverview of the site details and parameters;
e Description of the proposed works;

o Identification of potential environmental constraints affecting the site associated with relevant
State Government legislation and confirmation of :=2levant requirements to address recognised
issues; and

¢ [dentification of relevant planning scheme prcvisiaiis affecting the site, including the area
classification/ zone, applicable overlays and coniirmation of relevant requirements to address
recognised issues;

¢ Anassessmentwill be given on whether hianning approval is required. The relevant provisions in
the local government'’s planning scheme wiil be outlined.

In support of this report are the following Appendix documents:
o Appendix 1 - Property Information

e Appendix 2 - SPP Mapping

e Appendix 3— Council Propetiy Report

e Appendix 4 — Environmentai Reporting and Mapping
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2 Subjectdetails
2.1 Site context

Site summary

Street address

Real property description
Site area

Registered owner
Tenure

Easements and Encumbrances
Adjoining land use/s

Surrounding land use/s

Community Designation
Infrastructure

Infrastructure

Corner Gray and Gladstone Streets, Emerald

Lot 1 on CP902896

5.8ha

State of Queensland (represented by Departiment of Education)
Freehold

The title search and survey (refer Appendix 1) indicate that
there is no easements or lease interests affecting the lots.

The site is adjoined by residenfiat uses to the north, south east
and west.

The area is surrounded the towinship of Emerald

The site is not currently dgzsignated for community
infrastructure.

The Capricornia SODE is located onthe south side of Emerald,
with access to urban services including sewer, water,
stormwater, eteciricity and telecommunications infrastructure.
The location of service infrastructure can be checked by
completing & Dial Before You Dig (DYBD) search.

Where development involves ground disturbance, the internal
alignment of plumbing / drainage and other service conduits
shouid be ascertained from building records and considered as
pait of the development planning and design. Where the
change of use involves an intensification of the load on
services, services capacity should be investigated as part of
pianning and design to ensure that the additional services load
can be accommodated or determine upgrade requirements
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Figure 1 — Site 1 Aerial

Legend Source: DSDMIP SARA

E— Site Boundary
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3 Proposal Details

Capricornia SDE is currently unable to use The Outstation and The Shed facilities for overnight
accommodation due to fire safety and building classification issues.

3.1 Student population and projected growth

Given the unique nature of operations at the Capricornia SDE, the proposal is not considered a
growth project as the school does not have full time students in attendance on campus.
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4 Relevant planning provisions

The following town planning information provides an overview of relevant State and Local planning
matters and applicable legislation.

4.1 Regional Plan

Regional Plan Information
Regional Plan N/A
Land Use Category N/A

Refer to Appendix 2 for relevant mapping.
4.2 State Planning Policies

SPP State interests Applicability
Planning for liveable communities and housing
Liveable communities

Housing supply and diversity

Planning for economic growth

Agriculture

Development and construction

Mining and extractive resources

z 2 2 2

Tourism

Planning for the environment and heriiage
Biodiversity

Coastal environment

Cultural heritage

< Z2 Z2|Z2

Water quality

Planning for natural hiazards, risk and resilience

2

Emissions and hazzro ous activities

<

Natural hazardz, rick and resilience
Planning for infrastructure
Energy and water supply
Infrastructure integration
Transport infrastructure

Strategic airports and aviation facilities

Zz2 < | Z2|/ 2 2

Strategic ports

Referto Appendix 2 for relevant mapping.
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4.3 Planning Regulation 2017

Assessment triggered by Planning Regulation

Schedule 6 @ Part 3(8) Operational work by or for a public sector entity is accepted development
where the entity is authorised under a state law to carry out the work.

Schedule 7 Part 1(2) Building work by or for the State or a public sector entity is accepted
development.

Schedule 10 Development Assessment Applicability

Part 1 Airport land N

Part 2 Brothels

Part 3 Clearing native vegetation

Part 4 Contaminated land

Part 5 Environmentally relevant activities

Part 6 Fisheries

Part 7 Hazardous chemical facilities

Part 8 Heritage places

Part 9 Infrastructure-related referrals

Part 10 Koala habitat area

Part 11 Noise sensitive place on noise attenuation land

Part 12 Operational work for reccafiguring a lot

Part 13 Ports

Part 14 Reconfiguring & ot under Land Title Act

Part 15 SEQ developrnznt area

2 Z2 2 Z2 |2 2|2 2 Z2 2 2|2 2 Z2 2

Part 16 SEQ regionei landscape and rural production
area and SEQ r.ral living area

z

Part 17 Tidai works or work in a coastal management
district

Part 18 Urban design

Part 20 Wetland protection area

z2 Zz2 Z2 Z

Part 21 Wind farms
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4.4 Local Government Planning

4.5 Environmental

Planning Scheme Information

Planning scheme
Zoning
Local area plan

Overlays

Existing Land Use

Proposed Use

Infrastructure
Designation:

Central Highlands Regional Council Planning Scheme
Community Facilities Zone

N/A

Airport Environs

e OMOO0L1 Light Restriction Zone

e OMO0O01 6km radius from the Emerald Airport
Bushfire Hazard

e Class: Potential Impact Buffer

Flood Hazards

e OMOO05 Queensland Flocdplain Assessment
Overlay Mapping (State)

e OMOO05 Modelled Flonu Hazard Levels (Urban)
e OMOO05 Modelled Flood Hazard Levels (Regional)

Educational establishrmerit means the use of premises for—

a) training and instiuctian to impart knowledge and develop skills; or

b) student accommocdation, before or after school care, or vacation
care, if the use is ancillary to the use in paragraph (a)

Educational &swablishment

The site is not currently designated for community infrastructure.

Mapping undertaken for the site, and included in the Environmental Checklist Reportin Appendix 3
notes the site:

Koala habitat: The stie is not located within the South East Queensland Koala Protection Area w

Regulated veget2iion: The site is not mapped as containing regulated (Category X only) or
remnant veg~tedicn of concern under the Vegetation Management Act 1999.

Protected plants: The site is notlocated within a high-risk area for protected plants under
the Nature Conservation Act 1992.

Referable wetlands: The site is not within a Wetland Protection Area or affected by HES or GES

Wetland).

Coastal hazard: The siteis not in an erosion prone area, storm tide inundation area or coastal

management district.

An Environmental Checklist Report has been undertaken to identify environmental approval and
management requirements for the project and should be reviewed in conjunction with this report. This
reportis included on Appendix 4.
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4.6 Other Legislation
4.6.1 Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003 — Duty of Care

In accordance with the Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003, s28 duty of care requirements, the
developer is required to identify reasonable and practicable measures for ensuring activities are
managed to avoid Aboriginal cultural heritage. With reference to the Environmental Checklist Report
and Management Plan in Appendix 3, section 5.2 states:

The proposed development is to be located within an area subject to previous clearing. Therefore, the
nature of the activity is likely to be classified as ‘area previously subject to sigriticart disturbance’—
Category 4, under the Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003, Section 28 Duty of Care Guidelines.
Subject to measures set out in paragraph 5.6-5.12 under Category 4 of the Diity of Care Guidelines,
the proposed activates can proceed without further cultural heritage assessment.

It should be noted that any Aboriginal cultural heritage, if found, is prctected under the terms of the
Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003 even if Department of Envirciiment and Science (DES) has no
record relating to it. Contract documents should include provisions for works to cease and the relevant
Aboriginal Party to be contacted if evidence of Aboriginal culturai heritage is encountered during site
works. This is included as a standard requirement in the environimental requirements specification
prepared by the Environmental Unit

4.6.2 Environmental Protection and Natural Resaurce Management

The Client and all members of the project team have a “General Environmental Duty” under Section
319 of the Environmental Protection Act 1994. The General Environmental Duty makes it an offence
under the Act to carry out any activity that causes, or is likely to cause, environmental harm unless all
reasonable and practical measures have beer; iakento prevent or minimise the potential harm.

To minimise environmental harm, it is necessary to assess what environmental conditions exist on-
site and to identify potential environmentai imipacts of the proposed development. It is recommended
that full environmental due diligence is caitied out to ensure project compliance.

Environmental due diligence shouid inform preparation of a project Environmental Management Plan.
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5 Material Change of Use determinations

Under the Planning Act 2016, a material change of use of premises, means any of the following—

e the start of a new use of the premises;
o there-establishment on the premises of a use that has been abandoned,;
e amaterial increases in the intensity or scale of the use of the premises.

The below table assesses the proposed development against the above criteriato determine whether
a material change of use is occurring over the site.

Applicability
Commencement of a New Use N
Re-establishing an Abandoned Use N
Material Increase in Intensity and Scale of Existing Lawful Use Y

5.1 Determination

The Project constitutes a material change of use (MCU), being 2 material increase in scale and
intensity. This is based on the following:

e New accommodation hub with a gross floor area cf ap 3roximately 50-100m?
This determination was also confirmed by Central Highlands Regional Council.
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© Conclusions and recommendations

6.1 Material Change of Use Determination

As noted in section 5.1 of this Report, the proposed developmentis considered an increasein scale
and intensity, constituting an MCU that is considered to require an Assessable Development— Code
Assessment development application.

The School land where the Projectis proposed is not currently designated for community
infrastructure.

The Project constitutes assessable development under the planning scheme rzqiring a development
permit from the Central Highlands Regional Council, unless an Infrastructure lXesignation is
progressed over the subject site.

6.2 Recommended Actions

It is recommended any future development approval sought for the Capnicomia SODE be prepared
under an Infrastructure Designation process in accordance with Chapter 2, Part 5 on the Planning Act
2016.

As per Section 35(1) and Section 36(1) of the Planning Act 2216, iand may only be designated for
infrastructure if the Minister or local government is satisfied tat—

a) the infrastructure will satisfy statutory requireme:nts, or budgetary commitments, for the supply
of the infrastructure; or

b) there is or will be a need for the efficient and iirnely supply of the infrastructure.

It is likely that infrastructure proposed as part oi the existing school site would satisfactorily meet the
above criterion. Furthermore, in accordance witi: Schedule 5, Part 2 of the Planning Regulation 2017,
the proposal could be designated under ths f2liowing:

educational facilities;

7  facilities at which an educaticin and care service under the Education and Care Services
National Lay (Queensland: is operated;

8 facilities at which a QE 25proved service under the Education and Care Services Act 2013 is
operated;

In accordance with the Fiznning Act 2016, the designating Minister for all ‘infrastructure designations’
is the Treasurer and Mirnister for Infrastructure and Planning.

The effect of an Irfrastucture Designationis that the use of the site for the designated infrastructure
may proceed desyite the local government’s planning scheme, therefore requiring no further planning
approval from the local government. Nevertheless, it is recommended appropriate consideration be
given to the Planning Scheme, in particular the Overlays affecting the site in section 4.4 of this
Report.

To ensure the proposal meets its obligations, a number of supporting technical reports will be required
to confirm the adequacy of existing infrastructure, the suitability of the proposed works for the site and
to support the Infrastructure Designation process.

These include, but are not limited to:

e Architectural Master Plans;
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o Contour and Detail Survey Plan;

e Landscape Plan

o Traffic Impact Assessment

e Site Based Stormwater Management Plan;

e Flood Assessment

e Geotechnical Investigation;

e Bushfire Management Plan

e Arboristadvice where tree clearing required; and

e Services Advice (sewer, water, electrical, telecommunications).
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9 Appendices

The following is a list of appendices to this Site Investigation Report:

Appendix 1 Property Information

Appendix 2 SPP Mapping

Appendix 3 Council Property Report

Appendix 4 Environmental Report and Mapping
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Appendix 1 — Property Information
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Appendix 2 — SPP Mapping
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Appendix 3 — Council Property Report
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Vegetation management report
For Lot: 1 Plan: CP902896

14/04/2021
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This publication has been compiled by Operations Support, Department of Resources.
© State of Queensland, (2021)

The Queensland Government supports and encourages the dissemination and exchange of its information. The copyright in
this publication is licensed under a Creative Commons - Attribution 4.0 International (CC BY) licence.

Under this licence you are free, without having to seek our permission, to use this publication in accordance with the licence
terms.

You must keep intact the copyright notice and attribute the State of Queensland as the source of the publication.

Note: Some content in this publication may have different licence terms as indicated.

For more information on this licence, visit https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice. The Queensland Government shall not be liable for
technical or other errors or omissions contained herein. The reader/user accepts all risks aind responsibility for losses,
damages, costs and other consequences resulting directly or indirectly from using this iiforation.
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Recent changes

Updated mapping

Updated vegetation mapping was released on 6 April 2020 and includes the most recent Queensland Herbarium scientific
updates to the Regulated Vegetation Management Map, regional ecosystems, wetland, high-value regrowth and essential
habitat mapping.

Improvements to the format of the report were made in July 2020 to more clearly delineate the three regulatory frameworks of
vegetation management, protected plants and koala habitat protection. The Vegetation Management Pre-clear Regional
Ecosystem map was also removed from the Vegetation Management Report but can still be requested as a separate map.

Overview

Based on the lot on plan details you have supplied, this report provides the following detailed information:
Property details - information about the specified Lot on Plan, lot size, local government area, bioregion(s), subregion(s) and
catchment(s);

Vegetation management framework - an explanation of the application of the framework and contact details for the
Department of Resources who administer the framework;

Vegetation management framework details for the specified Lot on Plan inclucing:
- the vegetation management categories on the property;
« the vegetation management regional ecosystems on the property;
* vegetation management watercourses or drainage features on the property;
« vegetation management wetlands on the property;
* vegetation management essential habitat on the property;
» whether any area management plans are associated with the property;
« whether the property is coastal or non-coastal; and
» whether the property is mapped as Agricultural Land Class A or B;

Protected plant framework - an explanation of the application of the framework and contact details for the Department of
Environment and Science who administer the framework, inciuding:

« high risk areas on the protected plant flora survey trigger map for the property;

Koala protection framework - an explanation of the apglication of the framework and contact details for the Department of
Environment and Science who administer the framework; and

Koala protection framework details for the specitied Lot on Plan including:
« the koala district the property is locatedi iin:
* koala priority areas on the property;
« core and locally refined koala hakitat areas on the property;
» whether the lot is located in an ider:iified koala broad-hectare area; and
« koala habitat regional ecosyst=rns on the property for core koala habitat areas.

This information will assist you tc dezzrmine your options for managing vegetation under:
- the vegetation managemeri framawork, which may include:

» exempt clearing work;

« accepted development vegetation clearing code;

* an area management plan;

« a development approval;

- the protected plant framework, which may include:
« the need to undertake a flora survey;
« exempt clearing;
« a protected plant clearing permit;

- the koala protection framework, which may include:
» exempted development;
* a development approval;
« the need to undertake clearing sequentially and in the presence of a koala spotter.
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Other laws

The clearing of native vegetation is regulated by both Queensland and Australian legislation, and some local governments
also regulate native vegetation clearing. You may need to obtain an approval or permit under another Act, such as the
Commonwealth Government's Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act). Section 8 of this
guide provides contact details of other agencies you should confirm requirements with, before commencing vegetation
clearing.
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1. Property de

1.1 Tenure and title area

tails

All of the lot, plan, tenure and title area information associated with property Lot: 1 Plan: CP902896, are listed in Table 1.
Table 1: Lot, plan, tenure and title area information for the property

Lot Plan Tenure Property title area (sq metres)
1 CP902896 Freehold 58,970
A SP235855 Easement 24

The tenure of the land may affect whether clearing is considered exempt clearing work or may be carried out under an
accepted development vegetation clearing code.

1.2 Property location

Table 2 provides a summary of the locations for property Lot: 1 Plan: CP902896, in relation to natural and administrative

boundaries.

Table 2: Property location details

Local Government(s)

Central Highlands Regional
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Bioregion(s) Subregion(s)

Brigalow Belt Isaac - Comet
Downs
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2. Vegetation management framework (administered by the Department
of Resources)

The Vegetation Management Act 1999 (VMA), the Vegetation Management Regulation 2012, the Planning Act 2016 and the
Planning Regulation 2017, in conjunction with associated policies and codes, form the Vegetation Management Framework.

The VMA does not apply to all land tenures or vegetation types. State forests, national parks, forest reserves and some
tenures under the Forestry Act 1959 and Nature Conservation Act 1992 are not regulated by the VMA. Managing or clearing
vegetation on these tenures may require approvals under these laws.

The following native vegetation is not regulated under the VMA but may require permit(s) under other laws:
* grass or non-woody herbage;

« a plant within a grassland regional ecosystem prescribed under Schedule 5 of the Vegetation Management
Regulation 2012; and

* a mangrove.

2.1 Exempt clearing work

Exempt clearing work is an activity for which you do not need to notify the Department of Resources or obtain an approval
under the vegetation management framework. Exempt clearing work was previotsiy xnown as exemptions.

In areas that are mapped as Category X (white in colour) on the regulated vegetaiion management map (see section 4.1),
and where the land tenure is freehold, indigenous land and leasehold land fzr agriculture and grazing purposes, the clearing
of vegetation is considered exempt clearing work and does not require notiiication or development approval under the
vegetation management framework. For all other land tenures, contact thie Department of Resources before commencing
clearing to ensure that the proposed activity is exempt clearing work.

A range of routine property management activities are considered exempt clearing work. A list of exempt clearing work is
available at

https://www.gld.gov.au/environment/land/vegetation/exemptions!.
Exempt clearing work may be affected if the proposed clezsing area is subject to development approval conditions, a
covenant, an environmental offset, an exchange area, a resisration notice, or an area mapped as Category A. Exempt

clearing work may require approval under other Commoeinw 2alth, State or Local Government laws, or local government
planning schemes. Contact the Department of Resources prior to clearing in any of these areas.

2.2 Accepted development vegitation clearing codes

Some clearing activities can be undertaker under an accepted development vegetation clearing code. The codes can be
downloaded at

If you intend to clear vegetation uinter an accepted development vegetation clearing code, you must notify the Department of
Resources before commencing. The information in this report will assist you to complete the online notification form.

You can complete the online forin at
https://apps.dnrm.gld.gov.au/vegetation/
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2.3 Area management plans

Area Management Plans (AMP) provide an alternative approval system for vegetation clearing under the vegetation
management framework. They list the purposes and clearing conditions that have been approved for the areas covered by
the plan. It is not necessary to use an AMP, even when an AMP applies to your property.

On 8 March 2020, AMPs ended for fodder harvesting, managing thickened vegetation and managing encroachment. New
notifications cannot be made for these AMPs. You will need to consider options for fodder harvesting, managing thickened
vegetation or encroachment under a relevant accepted development vegetation clearing code or apply for a development

approval.

New notifications can be made for all other AMPs. These will continue to apply until their nominated end date.

If an Area Management Plan applies to your property for which you can make a new notification, it will be listed in Section 3.6
of this report. Before clearing under one of these AMPs, you must first notify the Department of Resources and then follow
the conditions and requirements listed in the AMP.

https://www.gld.gov.au/environment/land/vegetation/area-plans/

2.4 Development approvals

If under the vegetation management framework your proposed clearing is not exampt clearing work, or is not permitted under
an accepted development vegetation clearing code, or an AMP, you may be abie tc apply for a development approval.
Information on how to apply for a development approval is available at

https://www.gld.gov.au/environment/land/management/vegetation/developmer:

2.5. Contact information for the Departmeant of Resources

For further information on the vegetation management framewsarl:
Phone 135VEG (135 834)
Email vegetation@resources.qgld.gov.au

Visit https://www.dnrme.gld.gov.au/?contact=veqgetation t6 submit an online enquiry.
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3. Vegetation management framework for Lot: 1 Plan: CP902896

3.1 Vegetation categories

The vegetation categories on your property are shown on the regulated vegetation management map in section 4.1 of this
report. A summary of vegetation categories on the subject lot are listed in Table 3. Descriptions for these categories are

shown in Table 4.

Table 3: Vegetation categories for subject property. Total area: 5.89ha

Vegetation category

Area (ha)

Category X

59

Table 4: Description of vegetation categories

indigenous land and leasehold land
for agriculture and grazing purposes
is considered exempt clearing work
under the vegetation management
framework. Contact the Department
of Resources to clarify whether a
development approval is required for
other State land tenures.

Category Colour on Map Description Requirernents / options under the
vegetaiion management
framework

A red Compliance areas, environmental Sjsecial conditions apply to Category

offset areas and voluntary A areas. Before clearing, contact the

declaration areas Department of Resources to confirm
any requirements in a Category A
area.

B dark blue Remnant vegetation areas Exempt clearing work, or notification
and compliance with accepted
development vegetation clearing
codes, area management plans or
development approval.

C light blue High-value regrowth areas Exempt clearing work, or notification
and compliance with managing
Category C regrowth vegetation
accepted development vegetation
clearing code.

R yellow Regraowtii within 50m of a Exempt clearing work, or notification

watercaurse or drainage feature in and compliance with managing

the Great Barrier Reef catchment Category R regrowth accepted

areas development vegetation clearing
code or area management plans.

X white Clearing on freehold land, No permit or notification required on

freehold land, indigenous land and
leasehold land for agriculture and
grazing. A development approval
may be required for some State land
tenures.

Property Map of Assessable Vegetation (PMAV)

There is no Property Map of Assessable Vegetation (PMAV) present on this property.
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3.2 Regional ecosystems

The endangered, of concern and least concern regional ecosystems on your property are shown on the vegetation
management supporting map in section 4.2 and are listed in Table 5.

A description of regional ecosystems can be accessed online at
https://www.gld.gov.au/environment/plants-animals/plants/ecosystems/descriptions/

Table 5: Regional ecosystems present on subject property

Regional Ecosystem VMA Status Category Area (Ha) Short Description Structure Category
non-rem None X 5.89 None None
Please note:

1. All area and area derived figures included in this table have been calculated via reprojecting relevant spatial features to Albers equal-area conic projection
(central meridian = 146, datum Geocentric Datum of Australia 1994). As a result, area figures may differ slightly if calcilated for the same features using a
different co-ordinate system.

2. If Table 5 contains a Category 'plant’, please be aware that this refers to 'plantations’ such as forestry, and th=se areas are considered non-remnant under
the VMA.

The VMA status of the regional ecosystem (whether it is endangered, of concern or leasi concern) also determines if any of
the following are applicable:

« exempt clearing work;
« accepted development vegetation clearing codes;
« performance outcomes in State Code 16 of the State Development Assessment Provisions (SDAP).

3.3 Watercourses

Vegetation management watercourses and drainage features for this property are shown on the vegetation management
supporting map in section 4.2.

3.4 Wetlands

There are no vegetation management wetlands present on this property.

3.5 Essential habitat

Under the VMA, essential habitat for protecied wildlife is native wildlife prescribed under the Nature Conservation Act 1992
(NCA) as critically endangered, endangeisd, vulnerable or near-threatened wildlife.

Essential habitat for protected wilclife includes suitable habitat on the lot, or where a species has been known to occur up to
1.1 kilometres from a lot on which iherz is assessable vegetation. These important habitat areas are protected under the
VMA.

Any essential habitat on this praperty will be shown as blue hatching on the vegetation supporting map in section 4.2.

If essential habitat is identified on the lot, information about the protected wildlife species is provided in Table 6 below. The
numeric labels on the vegetation management supporting map can be cross referenced with Table 6 to outline the essential
habitat factors for that particular species. There may be essential habitat for more than one species on each lot, and areas of
Category A, Category B and Category C can be mapped as Essential Habitat.

Essential habitat is compiled from a combination of species habitat models and buffered species records. Regional
ecosystem is a mandatory essential habitat factor, unless otherwise stated. Essential habitat, for protected wildlife, means an
area of vegetation shown on the Regulated Vegetation Management Map -
1) that has at least 3 essential habitat factors for the protected wildlife that must include any essential habitat factors
that are stated as mandatory for the protected wildlife in the essential habitat database. Essential habitat factors are
comprised of - regional ecosystem (mandatory for most species), vegetation community, altitude, soils, position in
landscape; or
2) in which the protected wildlife, at any stage of its life cycle, is located.
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If there is no essential habitat mapping shown on the vegetation management supporting map for this lot, and there is no
table in the sections below, it confirms that there is no essential habitat on the lot.

Category A and/or Category B and/or Category C

Table 6: Essential habitat in Category A and/or Category B and/or Category C

No records

3.6 Area Management Plan(s)

Nil

3.7 Coastal or non-coastal

For the purposes of the accepted development vegetation clearing codes and State Code 16 of the State
Development Assessment Provisions (SDAP), this property is regarded as*

Non Coastal

*See also Map 4.3

3.8 Agricultural Land Class A or B

The following can be used to identify Agricultural Land Class A ¢t B areas under the "Managing regulated regrowth
vegetation" accepted development vegetation clearing code.

Does this lot contain land that is mapped as Agricultural i.and Class A or B in the State Planning Interactive Mapping

System?

No Class A

No Class B

Note - This confirms Agricultural Land Classes zis per the State Planning Interactive Mapping System only. This response
does not include Agricultural Land Classe:s identified under local government planning schemes. For further information,
check the Planning Scheme for your locai government area.

See Map 4.4 to identify the locaticn arid 2xtent of Class A and/or Class B Agricultural land on Lot: 1 Plan: CP902896.
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4. Vegetation management framework maps

Vegetation management maps included in this report may also be requested individually at:
https://www.dnrme.gld.gov.au/gld/environment/land/vegetation/vegetation-map-request-form

Regulated vegetation management map
The regulated vegetation management map shows vegetation categories needed to determine clearing requirements. These

maps are updated monthly to show new property maps of assessable vegetation (PMAV).

Vegetation management supporting map

The vegetation management supporting map provides information on regional ecosystems, wetlands, watercourses and
essential habitat.

Coastal/non-coastal map
The coastal/non-coastal map confirms whether the lot, or which parts of the lot, are consideted coastal or non-coastal for the

purposes of the accepted development vegetation clearing codes and State Code 16 of the State Development Assessment
Provisions (SDAP).

Agricultural Land Class A or B as per State Planning Policy: State Interest for Agriculture

The Agricultural Land Class map confirms the location and extent of land mapged as Agricultural Land Classes A or B as
identified on the State Planning Interactive Mapping System. Please note that this rnap does not include areas identified as
Agricultural Land Class A or B in local government planning schemes. This rmap can be used to identify Agricultural Land
Class A or B areas under the "Managing regulated regrowth vegetation" accepied development vegetation clearing code.
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5. Protected plants framework (administered by the Department of
Environment and Science (DES))

In Queensland, all plants that are native to Australia are protected plants under the Nature Conservation Act 1992 (NCA). The
NCA regulates the clearing of protected plants 'in the wild' (see Operational policy: When a protected plant in Queensland is
considered to be 'in the wild') that are listed as critically endangered, endangered, vulnerable or near threatened under the
Act.

Please note that the protected plant clearing framework applies irrespective of the classification of the vegetation under the
Vegetation Management Act 1999 and any approval or exemptions given under another Act, for example, the Vegetation
Management Act 1999 or Planning Regulation 2017.

5.1 Clearing in high risk areas on the flora survey trigger map

The flora survey trigger map identifies high-risk areas for endangered, vulnerable or near threatened (EVNT) plants. These
are areas where EVNT plants are known to exist or are likely to exist based on the habitat gresent. The flora survey trigger
map for this property is provided in section 5.5.

If you are proposing to clear an area shown as high risk on the flora survey trigger mazp, a fiora survey of the clearing impact
area must be undertaken by a suitably qualified person in accordance with the Flora survey guidelines. The main objective of
a flora survey is to locate any EVNT plants that may be present in the clearing impact area.

If the flora survey identifies that EVNT plants are not present within the clearing impact area or clearing within 200m of EVNT
plants can be avoided, the clearing activity is exempt from a permit. An exempt clearing notification form must be submitted to
the Department of Environment and Science, with a copy of the flora survey recort, at least one week prior to clearing.

If the flora survey identifies that EVNT plants are present in, or within 109r Gi, the area to be cleared, a clearing permit is
required before any clearing is undertaken. The flora survey report, as well as an impact management report, must be

submitted with the clearing permit application form.

5.2 Clearing outside high risk areas on the flora survey trigger map

In an area other than a high risk area, a clearing permit is oniy required where a person is, or becomes aware that EVNT
plants are present in, or within 2100m of, the area to be clearzi). You must keep a copy of the flora survey trigger map for the
area subject to clearing for five years from the day the ciearing starts. If you do not clear within the 12 month period that the
flora survey trigger map was printed, you need to print anc check a new flora survey trigger map.

5.3 Exemptions

Many activities are ‘exempt' under the protected clant clearing framework, which means that clearing of native plants that are
in the wild can be undertaken for these activities with no need for a flora survey or a protected plant clearing permit. The
Information sheet - General exemptions fur ifie take of protected plants provides some of these exemptions.

Some exemptions under the NCA are the same as exempt clearing work (formerly known as exemptions) under the
Vegetation Management Act 199¢ (i.e. listed in Schedule 21 of the Planning Regulations 2017) while some are different.

5.4 Contact information for DES

For further information on the protected plants framework:
Phone 1300 130 372 (and select option four)

Email palm@des.qgld.gov.au
Visit https://www.gld.gov.au/environment/plants-animals/plants/protected-plants
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5.5 Protected plants flora survey trigger map

This map included may also be requested individually at: https://apps.des.ald.gov.au/map-request/flora-survey-trigger/.

Updates to the data informing the flora survey trigger map

The flora survey trigger map will be reviewed, and updated if necessary, at least every 12 months to ensure the map reflects
the most up-to-date and accurate data available.

Species information

Please note that flora survey trigger maps do not identify species associated with 'high risk areas'. While some species
information may be publicly available, for example via the Queensland Spatial Catalogue, the Department of Environment
and Science does not provide species information on request. Regardless of whether species information is available for a
particular high risk area, clearing plants in a high risk area may require a flora survey and/or clearing permit. Please see the
Department of Environment and Science webpage on the clearing of protected plants for more information.
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6. Koala protection framework (administered by the Department of
Environment and Science (DES))

The koala (Phascolarctos cinereus) is listed in Queensland as vulnerable by the Queensland Government under Nature
Conservation Act 1992 and by the Australian Government under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation
Act 1999.

The Queensland Government's koala protection framework is comprised of the Nature Conservation Act 1992, the Nature
Conservation (Animals) Regulation 2020, the Nature Conservation (Koala) Conservation Plan 2017, the Planning Act 2016
and the Planning Regulation 2017.

6.1 Koala mapping

6.1.1 Koala districts

The parts of Queensland where koalas are known to occur has been divided into three koala districts - koala district A, koala
district B and koala district C. Each koala district is made up of areas with comparable koa'a populations (e.g. density, extent
and significance of threatening processes affecting the population) which require similar management regimes.

Section 7.1 identifies which koala district your property is located in.

6.1.2 Koala habitat areas

Koala habitat areas are areas of vegetation that have been determined to contain ¥nala habitat that is essential for the
conservation of a viable koala population in the wild based on the combinatior. of habiat suitability and biophysical variables
with known relationships to koala habitat (e.g. landcover, soil, terrain, climate and ¢jround water). In order to protect this
important koala habitat, clearing controls have been introduced into the Plansiing Regulation 2017 for development in koala
habitat areas.

Please note that koala habitat areas only exist in koala district A which is the South East Queensland "Shaping SEQ"
Regional Plan area. These areas include the local government arezs of Brisbane, Gold Coast, Logan, Lockyer Valley,
Ipswich, Moreton Bay, Noosa, Redland, Scenic Rim, Somerset, Sutishine Coast and Toowoomba (urban extent).

There are two different categories of koala habitat area (core xoala hiabitat area and locally refined koala habitat), which have
been determined using two different methodologies. These methcdologies are described in the document Spatial modelling in
South East Queensland.

Section 7.2 shows any koala habitat area that exists on youi property.

Under the Nature Conservation (Koala) Conservation Plan 2017, an owner of land (or a person acting on the owner's behalf
with written consent) can request to make, amend or ravoke a koala habitat area determination if they believe, on reasonable
grounds, that the existing determination for all ar pait of their property is incorrect.

More information on requests to make, amer:c ¢ ievoke a koala habitat area determination can be found in the document
Guideline - Requests to make, amend or reveks a koala habitat area determination.

The koala habitat area map will be updaiad at least annually to include any koala habitat areas that have been made,
amended or revoked.

Changes to the koala habitat arez map which occur between annual updates because of a request to make, amend or revoke
a koala habitat area determination can be viewed on the register of approved requests to make, amend or revoke a koala
habitat area available at: htt;s://crvironment.des.qgld.gov.au/wildlife/animals/living-with/koalas/mappina/koalamaps. The
register includes the lot on plan for the change, the date the decision was made and the map issued to the landholder that
shows areas determined to be koala habitat areas.

6.1.3 Koala priority areas

Koala priority areas are large, connected areas that have been determined to have the highest likelihood of achieving
conservation outcomes for koalas based on the combination of habitat suitability, biophysical variables with known
relationships to koala habitat (e.g. landcover, soil, terrain, climate and ground water) and a koala conservation cost benefit
analysis.

Conservation efforts will be prioritised in these areas to ensure the conservation of viable koala populations in the wild
including a focus on management (e.g. habitat protection, habitat restoration and threat mitigation) and monitoring. This
includes a prohibition on clearing in koala habitat areas that are in koala priority areas under the Planning Regulation 2017
(subject to some exemptions).

Please note that koala priority areas only exist in koala district A which is the South East Queensland "Shaping SEQ"
Regional Plan area. These areas include the local government areas of Brisbane, Gold Coast, Logan, Lockyer Valley,
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Ipswich, Moreton Bay, Noosa, Redland, Scenic Rim, Somerset, Sunshine Coast and Toowoomba (urban extent).
Section 7.2 identifies if your property is in a koala priority area.

6.1.4 ldentified koala broad-hectare areas

There are seven identified koala broad-hectare areas in SEQ. These are areas of koala habitat that are located in areas
committed to meet development targets in the SEQ Regional Plan to accommodate SEQ's growing population including
bring-forward Greenfield sites under the Queensland Housing Affordability Strategy and declared master planned areas
under the repealed Sustainable Planning Act 2009 and the repealed Integrated Planning Act 1997.

Specific assessment benchmarks apply to development applications for development proposed in identified koala
broad-hectare areas to ensure koala conservation measures are incorporated into the proposed development.

Section 7.2 identifies if your property is in an identified koala broad-hectare area.

6.2 Koala habitat planning controls

On 7 February 2020, the Queensland Government introduced new planning controls to the iPlanning Regulation 2017 to
strengthen the protection of koala habitat in South East Queensland (i.e. koala district A}.

More information on these planning controls can be found here:
https://environment.des.gld.gov.au/wildlife/animals/living-with/koalas/mapping/leqgislaiion-policy.

As a high-level summary, the koala habitat planning controls make:
« development that involves interfering with koala habitat (defined belcw) in an area that is both a koala priority area
and a koala habitat area, prohibited development (i.e. development far which a development application cannot be
made);
« development that involves interfering with koala habitat (defined below) in an area that is a koala habitat area but is
not a koala priority area, assessable development (i.e. deveiopimient for which development approval is required); and
« development that is for extractive industries where the deveiopment involves interfering with koala habitat (defined
below) in an area that is both a koala habitat area and & ke resource area, assessable development (i.e. development
for which development approval is required).

Interfering with koala habitat means:
1) Removing, cutting down, ringbarking, pushing over, poisoning or destroying in anyway, including by burning,
flooding or draining native vegetation in a koala nabitat area; but
2) Does not include destroying standing vegetation stock or lopping a tree.

However, these planning controls do not apply if the development is exempted development as defined in Schedule 24 of the
Planning Requlation 2017. More informatiori .1 exempted development can be found here:

https://environment.des.qld.gov.au/wildlife/animals/living-with/koalas/mapping/legislation-policy.

There are also assessment benchmarks that apply to development applications for:

- building works, operational works, rmatzrial change of use or reconfiguration of a lot where:
« the local government plariing scheme makes the development assessable;
« the premises includes an ar<a that is both a koala priority area and a koala habitat area; and
- the development does not involve interfering with koala habitat (defined above); and

- development in identified koala broad-hectare areas.

The Guideline - Assessment Benchmarks in relation to Koala Habitat in South East Queensland assessment benchmarks

outlines these assessment benchmarks, the intent of these assessment benchmarks and advice on how proposed
development may meet these assessment benchmarks.
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6.3 Koala Conservation Plan clearing requirements

Section 10 and 11 of the Nature Conservation (Koala) Conservation Plan 2017 prescribes requirements that must be met
when clearing koala habitat in koala district A and koala district B.

These clearing requirements are independent to the koala habitat planning controls introduced into the Planning Regulation
2017, which means they must be complied with irrespective of any approvals or exemptions offered under other legislation.

Unlike the clearing controls prescribed in the Planning Regulation 2017 that are to protect koala habitat, the clearing
requirements prescribed in the Nature Conservation (Koala) Conservation Plan 2017 are in place to prevent the injury or
death of koalas when koala habitat is being cleared.

6.4 Contact information for DES

For further information on the koala protection framework:
Phone 13 QGOV (13 74 68)
Email koala.assessment@des.gld.gov.au

Visit https://environment.des.qgld.gov.au/wildlife/animals/living-with/koalas/mapping

7. Koala protection framework details for Lot: % #ian: CP902896

7.1 Koala districts

Koala District C
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8. Other relevant legislation contacts list

Activity

Legislation

Agency

Contact details

« Interference with overland flow
« Earthworks, significant
disturbance

Water Act 2000
Soil Conservation Act 1986

Department of Regional
Development, Manufacturing and
Water

(Queensland Government)
Department of Resources
(Queensland Government)

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)
www.dnrme.qgld.gov.au

* Indigenous Cultural Heritage

Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act
2003

Torres Strait Islander Cultural
Heritage Act 2003

Department of Seniors, Disability
Services and Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander Partnerships

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)
www.datsip.gld.gov.au

* Mining and environmentally
relevant activities

« Infrastructure development
(coastal)

* Heritage issues

Environmental Protection Act 1994
Coastal Protection and
Management Act 1995
Queensland Heritage Act 1992

Department of Environment and
Science
(Queensland Government)

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)
www.des.qgld.gov.au

* Protected plants and protected
areas

Nature Conservation Act 1992

Department of Environment and
Science
(Queensland Goverrirnent)

Ph: 1300 130 372 (option 4)
palm@des.qgld.gov.au
wWww.environment.gov.au

» Koala mapping and regulations

Nature Conservation Act 1992

Department of Zavironment and
Science
(Queensland Government)

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)
Koala.assessment@des.qld.gov.au

« Interference with fish passage in a
watercourse, mangroves

« Forestry activities on State land
tenures

Fisheries Act 1994
Forestry Act 1959

Department of Agriculture and
Fis!.eries
((Queensland Government)

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)
www.daf.qld.gov.au

 Matters of National Environmental
Significance including listed
threatened species and ecological
communities

Environment Protection and
Biodiversity Conservation Act 1925

Department of Agriculture, Water
and the Environment
(Australian Government)

Ph: 1800 803 772
wWww.environment.gov.au

» Development and planning
processes

Planning Act 2016
State Development anc Public
Works Organisation Act 1971

Department of State Development,
Infrastructure, Local Government
and Planning

(Queensland Government)

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

« Local government requirements

Local Governri:art Act 2009
Planning Act 2616

Department of State Development,
Infrastructure, Local Government
and Planning

(Queensland Government)

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)
Your relevant local government
office

 Harvesting timber in the Wet
Tropics of Qld World Heritage area

Wet Tiopics World Heritage
Protection and Management Act
1293

Wet Tropics Management Authority

Ph: (07) 4241 0500
www.wettropics.gov.au
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14/04/2021 14:29:38
Lot: 1 Plan: CP902896

Vegetation Management Act 1999 - Extract from the essential habitat database

Essential habitat is required for assessment under the:
« State Development Assessment Provisions - State Code 16: Native vegetation clearing which sets out the matters of interest to the state for development assessment under the Planning Act 2016;
and
« Accepted development vegetation clearing codes made under the Vegetation Management Act 1999

Essential habitat for one or more of the following species is found on and within 1.1 km of the identified subject lot/s on the accompanying essential habitat map.
This report identifies essential habitat in Category A, B and Category C areas.
The numeric labels on the essential habitat map can be cross referenced with the database below to determine which essential habitat factors might exist for a particular species.
Essential habitat is compiled from a combination of species habitat models and buffered species records.
The Department of Resources website (http:/www.dnrme ald.gov au) has more information on how the layer is applied under the State Development Assessment Provisions - State Code 16: Native vegetation
clearing and the Vegetation Management Act 1999.
Regional ecosystem is a mandatory essential habitat factor, unless otherwise stated.
Essential habitat, for protected wildlife, means a category A area, a category B area or category C area shown on the regulated vegetation management map-
1) that has at least 3 essential habitat factors for the protected wildlife that must include any essential habitat factors that are stated as mandatory for the protected wildlife in the essential habitat
database; or
2) in which the protected wildlife, at any stage of its life cycle, is located.

Protected wildlife includes critically endangered, endangered, vulnerable or near-threatened native wildlife prescribed under the Nature Conservation Act 1292.
Essential habitat in Category A and/or Category B and/or Category C

No records
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